
 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

1 
 

 
GWAC Members 
 

Kay Aikin, Founder, CPO, Dynamic 
Grid/Introspective Systems  

Ron Ambrosio, Independent Energy 
Transformation Professional 

Andy Bordine, Sr. Practice Mgr. in Grid 
Automation, Actalent 

Shawn Chandler, Executive Director, CAPCO and 
Chair  

Marc Costa, Dir. Policy Planning, the Energy 
Coalition      

David Forfia, Principal Consultant, Utilicast  

Yashar Kenarangui, Xcel Energy 

Matt McDonnell, Current Energy Group, 
Managing Partner 

Farrokh Rahimi, Executive Vice President, Open 
Access Technology International, Inc.    

Aaron Snyder, Dir. of Grid Technology 
Consulting, EnerNex       

                                            

GWAC Associates & Emeritus 

Mark Knight, Emeritus 

Lorenzo Kristov, Emeritus 

Ken Wacks, Emeritus 

 

 

 

GWAC Guest Speaker 

Raymond Kaiser, Chief Innovation Officer, Evoke 
Systems 

 

GWAC Friends 

Larissa Affolabi 

Hawk Asgeirsson 

Larisa Dobriansky 

Peter Fitzgerald, INS 

Chris Irwin, DOE OE 

David Holmberg, NIST 

Dave LeVee 

Alaa Mahjoub, independent Digital Business 
Advisor 

Bruce Nordman, LBNL 

Jeremy Roberts, Green Button Alliance 

Tim Schoechle 

Ken Wacks, Emeritus 

David Wollman, Consultant 

 

PNNL Support 

Jaime Kolln, PNNL GWAC Administrator 

Susie McGuire, GWAC Coordinator 

Grace Borland, GWAC Financial Coordinator 

 

31 attendees 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

2 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

3 
 

 

 

Matt McDonald said that Grid Architecture for Regulators Lorenzo will present today has not yet been 
circulated.  The talk that he will give today is a preview of the content. 

Raymond Kaiser will present today on EPRI’s Flex Load Management. 

Jamie asked for a motion to approve the January meeting minutes. 

Kay Aikin gave the motion, and Marc Costa seconded the motion. There were no edits to the minutes. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

4 
 

 

 

Jaime Kolln noted that Kim Pires with AHR was very appreciative of GWAC’s participation in AHR 26 even 
though PNNL was not able to participate. GWAC presenters at AHR 26 were Shawn Chandler, Matt 
McDonnell, Ron Bernstein. It was one of the best attended GWAC sessions. 

Matt said that of the 25 or so people that he spoke with, many are interested in load flexibility and in 
commercial space more than 75% of the manufacturers that he spoke with that are in the market for 
large building management loads so pumps, rooftop units, heat exchangers and so on.  They all have 
integrated equipment and protocols that are able to manage load and are actively willing to work with 
aggregators and utilities in order to offer flexible load services.  Some are doing it intentionally where 
they have a control unit with perspective over all systems within a building and others are doing it on 
device by device layers. He concluded it was good to see the semantic and syntactic layers being 
addressed which are critical to our architecture vision. 

Shawn Chandler said that he spoke on networked virtual power plants and the opportunity in the U.S. 
for addressable load.  A lot of the research that he used to inform the base case came from the 
University of Michigan and their sustainability group.  The numbers are pretty clear; there are a billion 
megawatt hours of available load when just considering traditionally used for controllable load annually.   

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

5 
 

Matt was impressed by the engagement of the audience even though it was much less grid centered and 
more focused on the building space.  The sophistication of the questions was impressive. 

Jaime noted that GWAC has partnered with AHR for ten years.  Kim Pires expressed a lot of appreciation 
for this year’s activities.  She asked for more material from GWAC for next year’s meeting.  Ron B. has 
been our AHR key contact since he attends for another group as well; he will likely keep us informed. 

Jaime gave a quick overview of the educational program this year at DistribuTech.  He said that the 
Monday sessions  this year were very good, with a lot of standards-based presentations which he 
appreciated and also discussions on demonstrations and on operational coordination and things of that 
nature from utilities, and what their approaches are. There might be a good opportunity for something 
like a maturity model that GWAC can contribute to. 

Matt McDonnell said that at the NARUC Winter Meeting he saw themes of on load growth capacity 
additions, reliability reserve requirements and the like.  He definitely noted  a lot of attention on DER, 
DER integration, virtual power plant integration as an emergent and compelling solution to try to 
address capacity shortfalls. He said it was different than the Winter meeting last year. 

Ken Wacks asked if the DER Matt referenced is on-premise in a building or at scale? 

Matt said it was both.  Among certain subsets of the community there is a perceived product where you 
have data centers investing directly into what they are styling as virtual power plants. So, distribution 
connected DER can then offset capacity needs of the interconnecting data center load as it means to 
facilitate faster speed to power. That is an emergent theme that is gaining traction. 

Matt will attend the summer NARUC. 

Jaime said we need to look ahead at the year as to where GWAC can be engaged. There is a long list of 
opportunities where GWAC can be engaged. 

Jaime mentioned the RE+ Mid-Atlantic 2026 meeting in August in Philadelphia. He noted that Rhaman is 
no longer with SEPA, but he has reached out to Jaime and said he would like to continue to work with 
GWAC in the future. We will work with Aaron Smallwood for the Philadelphia meeting. 

Jaime encouraged the Council to note any opportunities for GWAC to engage with groups, meetings and 
conferences.  Contact Jaime and Susie and we will coordinate. 

Shawn said he spoke last week with the Atlantic Council. It is a non-partisan organization focused on 
international affairs and economic prosperity between Europe and the United States. They have an 
ongoing workshop series concerning the impact of AI and the industry response. He recognized a lot of 
people on the call that many GWAC attendees would know as well.   

He saw an opportunity to work with the innovation group for looking at things from a policy perspective 
as well as a technical one.  It is an on-going group.  If anyone is interested in participating in this, please 
let him know and he will get them connected. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

6 
 

Jaime suggested that Shawn talk with Mark Ortiz.  He said that Mark has expressed concern about some 
of the challenges regarding data centers and energy parks such as a lack of proper reference design 
architecture.  This could be a future working group and possible white paper.   

Marc Costa said that  this week there is an energy summit with both California commissions on a 
handful of transactive energy pilots that included a wider community engagement. He will be presenting 
on a prosumer network that they have been working on,  and he will give a nod to the GWAC in the 
presentation. There are about four pilots that have concluded ranging from simulation to field 
deployment.  He was very involved.  Marc said he is happy to report back on his findings. 

Jaime said that he would like Marc to have a chance to present to GWAC an overview of his 
presentation.  Marc could be a future guest speaker this spring.  

Marc said he is happy to do that. 

 

 

Yashar gave an update on his conference attendance. 

Jaime will follow up with Andy Bordine about a NARUC opportunity for GWAC. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

7 
 

New Vice Chair and Chair (elect) 

Jaime then introduced the newly elected GWAC Vice Chair and Chair (elect), Shawn Chandler. Ron 
Bernstein will be stepping down as chair at the end of this year.  He will mentor Shawn into the role.  

 

 

Shawn Chandler gave a brief overview of his career experience. He started out in telecommunications at 
Microsoft. Then he moved to Portland General Electric where he was involved with the Pacific 
Northwest Smart Grid Demo. He noted that the Demo was at the time the largest demo of its type  and 
it was the start of Transactive Energy Systems got its start. 

 

 

 

Shawn Chandler said he is planning to do a kickoff meeting in April about what may be the next work 
product.  It was inspired by changes to the Energy Star program.  He said the focus of the work group 
will be on the impact of energy efficiency as an architectural feature and how it modifies the system. It’s 
a grid architectural artifact – energy efficiency itself.   

Action:  Change the slide to not say energy star and to say Q3 for Fy26. 

Jaime has talked recently with Seemita Pal, PGE, about a GWAC meeting at a PGE location in Portland, 
Oregon.  It would not be a symposium partnership.  



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

8 
 

Jaime said Farrokh Rahimi has been gracious enough to set  up  meeting with the University of Utah for 
this Friday.  We will be talking with them about our needs and what they can provide.  

We will also talk with the Univ. of St. Thomas in Minnesota and with the University of South Florida in 
partnership with the IEEE Florida West Coast Section that Ron Ambrosio has connections with. Ron 
Ambrosio said that they have expressed a strong interest in hosting the GWAC Symposium.  Ron will 
forward the response from Aaron Smallwood on behalf of SEPA to Jaime. 

Jaime introduced Matt McDonnell, who gave a brief overview of the approach to this work and why the 
group was interested in it. 

 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

10 
 

Matt said that the thought process behind this white paper is to build communication pathways 
between organizations like NARUC and among commissioners. The paper will help to advance thinking 
about what good regulation should look like. 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

11 
 

Matt added that they want to understand how all the layers need to evolve. 

Lorenzo explained the structure diagram.  He said we want regulators to start asking different questions 
about how these things are going to work and we also want them to start to see the interrelationships in 
which the existence and presence of DER now really affects the other parties in the system. 

 

 

Matt said we really want to be encouraging both horizontal and vertical whole system perspectives 
when it comes to regulatory decision making.  We need to emphasize that interconnections and 
interfaces matter. 

Bruce Nordman asked about communication and the internet and how it informs. He said we have an 
example of a system that has changed dramatically in recent decades for the better and that is 
communications technology. He asked if they are looking for any inspiration from the architecture of the 
internet and how that informs and how we should think about the architecture of electricity systems? 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

12 
 

Matt said in general yes but not in the context of this work. The group really doesn’t go to great lengths 
to unpack that specific example.  He encouraged Bruce to take a look at how they have laid out the 
work. They have already started to lay some foundation and explore a sort of regulatory policy informal 
committee what might be next for a work product next year.  Along those lines we’re starting to home 
in on the need to identify advanced grid functions and needs including analogous evolutions including 
the telecom space. 

Along those lines the group is really starting to home in on a need to identify advanced grid functions. If 
we talk about evolving towards those advanced grid functions and the needs in that area, we can find 
some important analogous evolutions including the telecom space. 

Bruce replied that in the old system with phones on the grid, the network ended at individual devices 
and of course with the new system with Internet Technology, the wide area network ends at the modem 
and the local area network is distinct.  He said that what that could suggest is that rather than DER’s 
being part of the gird, the customer demarcation point is really at the point of coordination, not the 
individual device.  It’s a different way of thinking about it. He said he feels this idea should be considered 
because he sees it as a better approach. 

Lorenzo added that GWAC is trying to be careful to provide some teasers that are easily and intuitively 
graspable.  Then the group can follow up with a product that will go into more depth. 

Jaime noted that Matt has been working on grid services topics for a long time and is very familiar with 
ESI concepts. He noted that Bruce was involved with original GMLC work that was the foundation of the 
GWAC. He said that he can see lots of complementary opportunities for them in this area. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

13 
 

 

Kay said the group is meeting tomorrow.  Kay has edits and others may as well.  

Mark Patterson is using Google docs for the drafts but unfortunately, Kay can’t access it. Jaime offered 
to be the intermediary. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

14 
 

 

Shawn noted where progress has been made, hoping to have this one done by end of April. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

15 
 

 

Guest Speaker – Raymond Kaiser 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

16 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

17 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

18 
 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

19 
 

 

 

The group had numerous questions and comments. 

Jaime said any node can be an ESI. Anyplace there is a boundary there can be a negotiation.  

Raymond replied that to really make it happen you need to know the boundary conditions. 

Jaime also referred to some work at NAESB on what could become a universal registry. 

Raymond noted a new CPUC order. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

20 
 

Raymond will send GWAC a link to the paper when it is published. 

 

IEEE SA - IEEE 1815.2-2025  Jaime Kolln posted a link to a new standard IEEE Standard Profile for 
Communications with Distributed Energy Resources (DERs) Using IEEE Std 1815(TM) 
[Distributed Network Protocol (DNP3)]. 

 

Jaime asked who is planning to attend the SEPA meeting in Philadelphia, PA August 12-15 for the RE+ 
meeting. GWAC is planning to host a seminar or tutorial on the first day of the event. 

Shawn Chandler, Peter Fitzgerald, and Jeremy Roberts said they are planning to be there. 

Ron Ambrosio and Ron Bernstein will not be able to attend. 

 

Work Products 

Jaime checked with the lead authors on expected white paper due dates. 

Ron Ambrosio said the Bridge Back paper will be done in the April timeframe. He has some conflicts in 
March.  

Matt and Lorenzo said they expect the Regulators paper to be complete in the May timeframe. 

https://standards.ieee.org/ieee/1815.2/7731/


 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

21 
 

Shawn Chandler expects the Transportation Concept Model paper to be completed in July.  

July Transportation ppt – Shawn is working on that 

Jaime said the plan is to record the presentations live with an invite to the public. We will try to get a 
good audience through LinkedIn posts socialized in advance. 

 

 

 

GWAC Symposium 

 

Marc asked if the choice of a venue would be correlated with the choice of partner for the symposium. 

Jaime said that some ideas have been put forward but are still working on selecting and confirming. 

Aaron Synder suggested Tech Advantage, an NRECA hosted event. The location would be near Nashville, 
Tennessee. 

Jaime said that a big room that could hold 125+ people and another breakout room for 75~ would be 
needed. He added that GWAC should have plenty of material on hand from previous presentations 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

22 
 

Ron Bernstein volunteered to be the event chair. 

We have volunteers but no roles have been assigned yet. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

23 
 

 

Jaime, Susie and Vanessa will look at what aspects PNNL could help GWAC cover. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

24 
 

NIST – Dave Wollman; Dave said that the NIST 800-82 guide to OT security will be updated. It will go out 
for public comment through Feb. 23, online. He provided a link: Call for Comments on NIST SP 800-82, 
Guide to Operational Technology (OT) Security | NIST 

Green Button - Jeremy Roberts; Jeremy said that meeting registration is not open just yet. Anyone can 
participate. It will be held May 21, 2026, as a virtual meeting. He provided a link to the meeting:  Green 
Button Alliance’s Annual General Meeting 2026 - Green Button Alliance 

IEEE PES General Meeting 2026 – Farrokh is setting up a panel.  Jaime Kolln will be a panelist.  One of the 
panels is on operational coordination. 

ISO/IEC -Ken Wacks’ we are developing a proposal for online database and registry to support our 
standardized lexicon of connected devices. The lexicon is intended to promote interoperability among 
products from a variety of manufacturers. We are considering a formal online metadata registry using 
XML since it supports metadata attributes, and comments. 

We are also considering proposals for developing strategies using the energy management agent, which 
is now an international standard for in home energy management or in building energy management.  

CTA – Ken Wacks;  We’re lining up speakers for resuming meetings. 

IREC Customer Grid Edge (CGE) is continuing work on developing Version C of ANSI  CTA 2045, the 
Modular Communications Interface for Energy Management.  

Ken replied to Shawn Chandler that to be a part of the ISO/IEC international working group – you have 
to join the US technical advisory group first. He will give Sean some information about that. 

EPRI – Ben Ealey; The interoperability working group that formed recently had been working on export 
capable DERS.  They found that some test labs were testing inconsistently when they were looking at 
protocol implementations as well as other interoperability. All the requirements in 1547 so they have 
now launched another working group that will pull all test labs in. They are doing certifications.  They 
are trying to understand where some of the gaps are and where changes should be made or other 
changes needed to fix the issues. 

The new group meets the day before the interoperability group, on Wednesday’s each month in the 
afternoon. The meeting will be tailored to facilitating conversation.   It’s open to anyone. Reach out to 
Ben if you would like to participate. 

Shawn Chandler - GridWise Alliance;  There is a GridWise Alliance meeting on the WRIS electric school 
bus initiative following this meeting today.   

Most of the meetings have an interesting tie in with GWAC in the technical area.  They have a technical 
council and a policy council.  The policy council meets on Friday.  Shawn will attend that and he has a 
friend who will attend the technical council, so he plans to report on both meetings for the next liaison 
report. 

https://www.nist.gov/news-events/news/2026/01/call-comments-nist-sp-800-82-guide-operational-technology-ot-security
https://www.nist.gov/news-events/news/2026/01/call-comments-nist-sp-800-82-guide-operational-technology-ot-security
https://www.greenbuttonalliance.org/events/2026-green-button-annual-general-meeting
https://www.greenbuttonalliance.org/events/2026-green-button-annual-general-meeting


 
Meeting Minutes  

Feb. 18, 2026 

25 
 

 

 

 
 

 


	GWAC Members
	PNNL Support

